c\1Y Og

é His Tl
HOLBROOK. AZ
"HUB OF THE SOUTHWEST”
465 1% Avenue

P.O. Box 970
Holbrook, AZ 86025

OUR MISSION
City of Holbrook Government exists to provide ethical and responsible local government.

AGENDA
Regular City Council Meeting
6:00 p.m. May 13, 2021

1. CALL TO ORDER:
2. ROLL CALL:
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION:

4, CONSENT AGENDA:
a. April 22, 2021 meeting minutes.

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC FOR AGENDA ITEMS:
*A five-minute time limit per individual is available at this time for Agenda items.

6. NEW BUSINESS:
a. APS Wildfire Mitigation Report - Janet Dean.

b. Resolution 21-05: A resolution approving and adopting an Intergovernmental Agreement
with Navajo County regarding the employment of the Magistrate Court Clerk.

¢. Resolution 21-06: A resolution designating authority to execute a grant to reconstruct
the airport apron.

d. Planning and Zoning Commission member appointment.

7. CALL TO THE PUBLIC FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS:
*A three-minute time limit per individual is available at this time for non-agenda items.

8. SUMMARY OF CURRENT EVENTS:
Mayor:
Council Members:
City Manager:

9. SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN PETITION FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
**Requests to have an item discussed on the Agenda.

10. ADJOURNMENT

\ ‘
Posted the 10t day of May 2021. \'—A&r\ Sf-\su_w& *;-

LisaHunt, Deputy City Clerk

Tab 1

Tab 2

Tab 3
Tab 4



*Individuals must submit a “Request to Address City Council” form to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting.

Anyone may address the City Council on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Council. City Council may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to AR.S. § 38-431.01 (H), action taken as a
result of public comment will be limited to directing City staff to study the matter, responding to any criticism, or
scheduling the matter for further consideration and decision at a later date. Items on the agenda will not be heard or
discussed in Call to the Public. Video or audio tapes or other overhead visual aids are not allowed during these public
appearances. All speakers should begin their remarks by stating their name and address for the record.

=Requests to have an item discussed on a future agenda should be presented on the “Request and Petition of citizens
to City of Holbrook Council” form during the Submission of Written Petition for ltems Not on the Agenda to the Council at
a regular meeting. Once this form is submitted, the Council will consider the petition and a response will be given within
31 days per the Holbrook City Charter Article II, Section 2.18.

Members of the public shall refrain from making personal, impertinent or slanderous remarks and from becoming
boisterous. Unauthorized remarks from the audience, clapping, stomping of feet, yelling or any similar demonstrations
are also prohibited. Violations of these rules may result in removal from the meeting. Individual members of the public
body may respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the public body.

Pursuant to ARS 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Holbrook City Council, and to the General public that a
meeting, which is open to the public, will be held on above-mentioned date, in the City Council Chambers, at 465 First
Avenue, Holbrook, Arizona. Members of the City Council may choose to participate in this meeting telephonically. The
City Council may adjourn into executive session, which will not be open to the public, to discuss certain matters in
accordance with ARS 38-431.03. Electronic versions of this agenda can be found at www.ci.holbrook.az.us.



Tab L
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE HOLBROOK CITY COUNCIL HELD ON

April 22, 2021

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Young called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL: Mayor Merrill Young, Vice Mayor Francie Payne, Councilmembers Tim Dixon, Adam Marsh, Mike

Nilsson, and Kip Woolford appeared in Council Chambers. Councilmember Earl Kester participated via conference
call.

CITY STAFF: City Manager Ted Soltis

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION: The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilmember Nilsson. The
Invocation was given by Reverend Randolph Hollingsworth from St. John Missionary Baptist Church.

CONSENT AGENDA:

April 8, 2021 Meeting Minutes
MOTION: Councilmember Marsh
SECONDED: Vice Mayor Payne

DISCUSSION: Vice Mayor Payne noted a correction; Councilmember Dixon lead the Pledge of Allegiance.
MOTION CARRIED

CALL TO THE AUDIENCE FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA:
The following people spoke against the election ordinance: Kathleen Smith, Richard Peterson, Kent Darris, Phil
Cobb, David Shumway, Randy Murph, and Gerald Hancock.

The following people spoke against the business license ordinance: David Shumway, Randy Murph, Cindy Tafoya,
Gerald Hancock, and David Smith.

NEW BUSINESS:

a. Ordinance 21-02 - 2" reading: An ordinance regarding business licenses.
MOTION: Councilmember Dixon
SECONDED: Councilmember Marsh
DISCUSSION: Vice Mayor Payne said that she initiated the business license due to complaints she received
from businesses, but after hearing concerns about the proposed business license requirement, she is not
prepared to support it at this time.
Councilmember Marsh said he appreciates businesses and noted that this ordinance did not originate with
City Hall staff. The intent of the ordinance is to legitimize business, not to discriminate. He said the proposed
fee is reasonable. He also noted a business license would be beneficial for record-keeping, and will ensure
that businesses operate within preexisting laws.
Councilmember Woolford thanked everyone for turning out. He noted that the timing wasn’t right and more
investigation was necessary.
Councilmember Dixon also thanked everyone for coming out. He concurred with Councilmember Marsh’s
response, and added that some of the issues brought up were under the purview of administration not
Council. He also noted that as a business owner he did not have an issue with it.
Councilmember Nilsson expressed appreciation for all who came to express their opinion. He understands
both sides of the issue and recommended starting with a business registry.
Councilmember Kester thanked all who came out.
Méyor Young noted that this was not a penalty or punishment.
ROLL CALL VOTE: Councilmember Dixon “Aye”, Councilmember Kester “Nay”, Councilmember Marsh “Aye”,
Councilmember Nilsson “Nay”, Vice Mayor Payne “Nay”, Councilmember Wooliford “Nay”, Mayor Young
IlAye”
MOTION FAILED



b. Ordinance 21-03 - 2" reading: An ordinance regarding consolidated elections.
MOTION: Councilmember Marsh
SECONDED: Councilmember Dixon
DISCUSSION: Mayor Young noted that there was a conflict in the Charter. He also sited A.R.S. 16-211 - “On
the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of every even-numbered year, a general election shall be
held for the election of representatives in Congress, members of the legislature, and state, county and
precinct officers whose terms expire at the end of the year in which the election is being held or in the
following year.”
Vice Mayor Payne said that we are not obligated to follow state law as a result of the Tucson ruling. She felt
that even year elections are a good idea, however, she is against extending terms. Therefore, she does not
support this ordinance.
Councilmember Dixon stated that there is no question that the City is to conform to state election laws. He
added that we are not Tucson, as the respective Charters are different.
Councilmember March said there are beneficial reasons for doing this.
Councilmember Nilsson said we were following law, that no one wanted to extend terms. He also noted the
need to clean-up the Charter.
Councilmember Kester said the Charter says we have four-year terms. We should go by the Charter and have
an election.
Councilmember Woolford said we need to figure out the Charter. He noted the chaos of the recent state and
federal elections.
ROLL CALL VOTE: Councilmember Dixon “Aye”, Councilmember Kester “Nay”, Councilmember Marsh “Aye”,
Councilmember Nilsson “Aye”, Vice Mayor Payne “Nay”, Councilmember Woolford “Nay”, Mayor Young “Aye”
MOTION CARRIED

¢. Ordinance 21-04 - 2™ reading: An ordinance regarding recreational marijuana.
MOTION: Councilmember Payne
SECONDED: Councilmember Kester
DISCUSSION: Vice Mayor Payne noted that this was a model ordinance provided by the League. She added
that people should be able to buy marijuana.
Councilmember Nilsson noted that marijuana is harmful and doesn’t want to see kids buying and using it. He
is against this ordinance.
Councilmember Woolford would like to see more business input.
Mavyor Young noted that this is a model ordinance provided by the League of Arizona Cities and Towns.
Councilmember Dixon gave a presentation which provided information against marijuana.
ROLL CALL VOTE: Councilmember Dixon “Nay”, Councilmember Kester “Aye”, Councilmember Marsh “Aye”,
Councilmember Nilsson “Nay”, Vice Mayor Payne “Aye”, Councilmember Woolford “Aye”, Mayor Young “Aye”
MOTION CARRIED

d. Ordinance 21-05 - 2" reading: An ordinance regarding the sale of real property.
MOTION: Councilmember Dixon
SECONDED: Councilmember Marsh
ROLL CALL VOTE: Councilmember Dixon “Aye”, Councilmember Kester “Aye”, Councilmember Marsh “Aye”,
Councilmember Nilsson “Aye”, Vice Mayor Payne “Aye”, Councilmember Woolford “Aye”, Mayor Young “Aye”
MOTION CARRIED

CALL TO THE PUBLIC FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS:
Kim Belknap presented recommendations for the golf course. Cindy Tafoya noted that there will be a round table
discussion on April 28" from 3:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. at the Old Court House discussing Petrified Forest National
Park issues.

SUMMARY OF CURRENT EVENTS-MAYOR:
*Mayor Young thanked everyone for coming out. He mentioned recent activities at the Fair grounds and
encouraged those wishing to help to contact Mike Sample.




SUMMARY OF CURRENT EVENTS-COUNCILMEMBERS:

*Councilmember Nilsson thanked the Reid family for their work with Little League. He expressed gratitude that
things were getting back to normal at the High School. He attended a NACOG meeting where the Sun Valley grant
was approved. He noted that revenues were available for infrastructure and transportation projects.

*Vice Mayor Payne noted that there were over 500 kids at the recent event at the fairgrounds. She hoped that
events like this would be better advertised.

*Councilmember Marsh said that the area around the animal shelter was looking much better. He thanked City
staff for their assistance. He also noted that a grant was received from Safeway.

*Councilmember Woolford thanked everyone who came to the meeting. He also mentioned the recent event at
the fairgrounds.

*Councilmember Kester mentioned that he was out of town. He noted that he supported the use of funds for
several projects.

SUMMARY OF CURRENT EVENTS-CITY MANAGER:
He attended the Hashknife parade and swearing-in ceremony. He thanked the dedicated group that has
volunteered for many years to help make this important event happen.

He provided an update on facility preparation for Memorial Day weekend:
The splash pad has been repaired and is ready for opening.
The batting box equipment has been repaired.
The mini golf carpet is on order.
The hot water system for the pool has been ordered.
Heward Park Dog Park will be closed for re-seeding.
The concession stands at Hunt Park and Lisitzky park are schedule for repair and painting.

SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN PETITION FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: None

ADJOURNMENT:

MOTION: Councilmember Nilsson
SECONDED: Councilmember Payne
MOTION CARRIED

Meeting adjourned at 7:58 p.m.

I hereby certify that the forgoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Regular Meeting of the

Holbrook City Council held on April 22, 2021. | further certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a
quorum was present.

Ted Soltis, City Manager

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13" day of May 2021.

J. Merrill Young, Mayor



P
lab 2
RESOLUTION 21-05

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOLBROOK, NAVAJO
COUNTY, ARIZONA APPROVING AND ADOPTING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT WITH NAVAJO COUNTY REGARDING THE EMPLOYMENT OF THE
MAGISTRATE COURT CLERK

WHEREAS, the City of Holbrook and Navajo County entered into an Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) regarding the employment of the magistrate court clerk on July 1, 2015; and
WHEREAS, the City and County desire to enter into a new agreement.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF HOLBROOK:
Section 1: The Amendment is adopted and approved, attached as Exhibit “A”.
Section 2: The Mayor is authorized to execute this Resolution.

Section 3: The City Manager is authorized to execute the Amendment and to take all
necessary action to carry out the terms of the Amendment.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
HOLBROOK, ARIZONA, this May 13, 2021.

APPROVED/EXECUTED: APPROVED AT TO FORM:
J. Merrill Young, Mayor Bradley A. Burns, City Attorney
ATTEST:

Lisa Hunt, Deputy City Clerk



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF HOLBROOK AND NAVAJO COUNTY
FOR THE EMPLOYMENT OF THE MAGISTRATE COURT CLERK

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT IS MADE between the City of Holbrook, an Arizona Municipal
Corporation, “City”, and Navajo County, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, “County”.

WHEREAS, the County operates the Navajo County Justice Court, one precinct of which precinct one is within the
corporate limits of City; and

WHEREAS, both courts process cases involving matters originating within the corporate limits of the City; and
WHEREAS, the clerical duties of the Justice Court and the Magistrate Court are similar in most respects; and

WHEREAS, ARS §§ 11-951 and 11-952 authorize public agencies such as County and City to enter into
intergovernmental agreements for joint or cooperative action; and

WHEREAS, ARS § 11-952(J) specifically provides that public agencies may enter into intergovernmental
agreements with the Superior Court, Justice Court and Magistrate Courts concerning related services and facilities
for a term not to exceed ten years, with the approval of any such agreement by the Presiding Judge of the
Superior Court in the county in which the court or courts providing the services or facilities are located; and

WHEREAS, City has requested that the Justice Court clerical staff perform the clerical duties of the Magistrate
Court, and County is willing to provide such services upon the terms set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this IGA is to achieve greater efficiency in the operation of the Magistrate Court and the
Justice Court by having the Justice Court clerical staff perform the clerical duties of the Magistrate Court.

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY

a. The Justice Court clerical staff will promptly address and maintain all City cases (including electronic
data entry into the court’s computer system), provide appropriate court support services for the
Magistrate, prepare and submit all required statistical reports for the Magistrate Court, and provide
City with monthly reports showing the number and type of City cases and the fines and fees collected
in relation to such cases.

b. Fines, fees and other monies payable in relation to City cases will be the property of City and will be
promptly remitted to City. The Justice Court clerical staff will use their best efforts to collect fines,
fees and other monies payable in relation to City cases.

c. The Justice Court clerical staff will devote the same care and attention to City cases as the Justice
Court cases. County does not warrant that the services provided hereunder will be error-free, and
County shall have no Iiability to City in connection with this IGA except in instances of gross
negligence or willful misconduct. County shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City and its
official, officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, actions, expenses, losses
or liabilities arising out of County’s gross negligence or willful misconduct in relation to this IGA or the
performance of services hereunder.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY

Page 1 of 2



5.

a. On or before the Effective Date, City shall pay to County the sum of $53,242. Thereafter, and so long
as this IGA remains in effect the City shall pay to County the sum of $53,242 on or before each
anniversary of the Effective Date.

b. City shall provide, at no cost to the County, timely and complete information and materials in relation
to City cases as may reasonably be required for the Justice Court clerical staff to provide services
hereafter.

c. City shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless County and its officials, officers, agents and employees
from and against any and all claims, actions, expenses, losses, and liabilities arising out of any City
case, gross negligence, or willful misconduct or any other matter relating to this IGA, except for
matters within the scope of County’s indemnity to City as set forth in paragraph 2c.

EFFECTIVE DATE

July 1, 2021

GENERAL

a. This IGA shall be effective as of the Effective Date and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2026 unless
sooner terminated by either party pursuant to paragraph 4b.

b. Either party may terminate this IGA by providing written notice to the other party no less than 120
days before the effective date of termination. Upon any such termination, a pro-rated portion of the
annual fee paid by City pursuant to paragraph 3.a. shall be refunded. The parties shall cooperate to
ensure a smooth transition so the operations of their respective courts are not interrupted.

c. This IGA sets forth the entire understanding between the parties with respect to its subject matter.

Any amendment to this IGA shall be in writing and shall be executed with the same formality by both
parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Intergovernmental Agreement for the Employment of the Magistrate
Clerk have caused their names to be affixed hereto by their duly authorized officers.

NAVAJO COUNTY CITY OF HOLBROOK

Adoption Date Adoption Date

Daryl Seymore, Chairman J. Merrill Young, Mayor
Approved as to form and content: Approved as to form and content:
Brad Carlyon, County Attorney Bradley A. Burns, City Attorney
Presiding Judge

Attest: Attest:

Melissa W. Buckley, Clerk of the Board Lisa Hunt, Deputy City Clerk

Page 2 of 2



Tab 2

RESOLUTION 21-06
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOLBROOK, NAVAJO

COUNTY, ARIZONA, DESIGNATING AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE A GRANT TO
RECONSTRUCT THE AIRPORT APRON

» WHEREAS, the City has been approved to receive Federal funds to reconstruct the Holbrook
Municipal Airport apron; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) offers and agrees to pay one hundred
(100) percent of the allowable costs incurred accomplishing this project; and

WHEREAS, as part of acceptance, the Mayor and City Council must provide authority to
execute the grant.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF CITY
OF HOLBROOK, ARIZONA:

Section 1: The grant (attached as Exhibit A hereto) is accepted and approved, as a binding
legal obligation of the City.

Section 2: The Mayor is authorized to execute this Resolution.

Section 3: The City Manager is authorized to execute the grant and to take all necessary
action in furtherance of grant approval, implement the grant, and carry out the grant
terms.

Section 4: The City Attorney is authorized to execute the “Certificate of Sponsor’s
Attorney,” commiserate with his professional responsibilities attesting that all
representations made therein are accurate.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
HOLBROOK, ARIZONA, this 13% day of May 2021.

APPROVED/EXECUTED: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
J. Merrill Young, Mayor Bradley A. Burns, City Attorney
ATTEST:

Lisa Hunt, Deputy City Clerk



3-04-0020-021-2021

U8, Department
of Travportation
Fetleral Avinion
Administration
FAA Airport improverment Program [AlP)
GRANT AGREEMENT

Parst | - Offar

Federal Award Offer Date May 3, 2021

Alrport/Planning Area Holbrook Municipal Alrport

FY2021 AIP Grant Number 3-04-0020-021-2021

Unique Entity dentifier 079002465

TO:  City of Holbrook
{herein called the "Sponsor™}

FROM: The United States of America (acting through the Federal Avistion Administration, herein
called the "FAA")

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has submitted to the FAA a Project Application dated March 29, 2021, for a
grent of Federal funds for 3 project at or essocizted with the Hothrook Municipal Alrport, which is
included as part of this Grant Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the FAA has approved e project for the Holbrook Munidipal Airport (herein called the
“Project”) consisting of the following:

Reconstruct Apron Design Only
which is more fully described in the Project Application.

NOW THEREFORE, Pursuant to and for the purpose of carrying out the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018
{Public Law Number 115-254); Title 49, United States Cade {U.5.C.), Chapters 471 and 475; 43 US.C. §§
40101 et seq., and 48103; the Department of Transportation Appropriations Act, 2021 {Public Law 116-
260, Division L}, as further amended by the American Rescue Plan Act 0f 2021 (Public Law 117-2); and
the representations contained in the Project Application; and in consideration of: (a) the Sponsor’s
adoption and ratification of the Grant Assurances attached hereto (b} the Sponsor’s acceptance of this
Offer; and (c} the benefits to accrue to the United Stetes and the public from the accomplshment of the
Projact and compliance with the Grant Assurance and conditions as herein provided;



3-04-0020-021-2021

THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE UNITED STATES, HEREBY
OFFERS AND AGREES to pay 100 pescent of the Memhhunedmnpnﬁmmehojen-
the l.ln!ted States share of the Project.

Assistance Listings Number {Formerly CFDA Number]: 20.106
This Offer ks made on and SUBIECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1

CONDITIONS

The maximum obligation of the Unlied States payable under this Offer is

$163,839,

The following amounts represent a breakdown of the maximiim obligation for the purpose of
establishing aklowable smounts for eny future grant amendment, which may increase the foregoing
maximum obligation of the United States under the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 47108(b):

$.0for planning

$ 163,839 elrport development or noise program implementation; and,

$ 0 for land acquisition.

Gt Performance. This Grant Agreement Is subject to the following Federal award requirements:
2. Perlod of Performance:
1. Shall start on the date the Sponsor formally accepts this Agreement and s the date signed

by the last Sponsor signatary to the Agreement. The end date of the Period of Perfarmance
s 4 years (1,460 calendar days) from the date of acoeptance. The Period of Performance
end date shall not affect, relleve, or reduce Sponsor obligations and assurances that
extend beyond the closeout of this Grant Agreement.

Means the total estimated time interval between the start of an initial Federal award and
the planned end date, which may Indude one or more funded portions or budget periods.
{2 Code of Federal Regulations {CFR) § 200.1).

b. Budget Period:
1. For this Grant is 4 years {1,460 calendar days) and follows the same start and end date as

the perind of performance provided In Paragreph a.1. Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.403(h), the
Sponsar may charge to the Grant only allowable costs Incurred during the Budget Period.

2. Means the time interval from the start date of e funded portion of an award to the end

date of that funded portion during which the Sponser is suthorized to expend the funds
awarded, Induding any funds carried forward or other revisions pursuant to § 200,308,

¢. Close Cut and Termination
1. Unless the FAA authorizes a written extension, the Sponsor must submit ail Grant closeout

documentation and liquidate {pay-off} sll obligations incurred under this award no fater
than 120 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance. If the Sponsor
does not submit all required closeout documentation within this time period, the FAA will
proceed to close out the grant within one year of the period of performance end date with
the information available st the end of 120 days. {2 CFR § 200.344).



3-04-0020-021-2021

2. The FAA may terminate this Grant, inwhole or in part, in accordance with the conditions
set forth in 2 CFR § 200,340, or other Federal regulatory or statutory authorities as
applioable.

tight : 5ts. The Sponsor must nat indiude any costs in the project that the FAA
has d!hermined lo be Inelttble or unaliowable,

4. Indirect Costs - Sponsor. The Sponsor may charge indirect costs under this award by applying the
indirect cost rate identified in the project application as accepted by the FAA, to allowable costs for
Sponsor direct salaries and wages,

§. rae

Cosls, The Unfted States’ share of allowable project costs

will be made n mrdanu with 49 U.S.C. § 47109, the regulations, policies, and protedures of the
Secretary, and any superseding legislation. Final detenmination of the United States’ share will be
hased upon the final audit of the total amount of allowable project costs and setiement will be
made for ary upward or downward adjustments to the Federal share of costs,

5. The Sponsor must

earry out md cumpleﬁeﬂle projectwnhout undue deh-vs and in mrdanm with this Agreement,
49 U.S.C, Chapters 471 and 475, and the regulations, policies, and procedures of the Secretary of
Transportation {"Secretary”). Per 2 CFR § 200.308, the Sponsor agrees to report to the FAA any
disengagement from performing the project that exceeds three months or a 25 percent reduction in
time devoted to the project, and request prior approval from FAA. The report must incude a reason
for the project stoppage. The Sponsar also agrees to comply with the grant assurances, which are
part of this Agreement.

: ! d : X potance. The FAA reserves the right to emend or
wlthdmw this oﬁer at any tlme prlnr toits aoneptanoe by the Sponsor.

8. Offer Drpiralion Date. This offer will expire and the United States will not be obligated to pay any
part of the costs of the project unless this offer has been arcepted by the Sponsor on or before June
1, 2021, orsmhsuhsequem dateasmaybe prescribed in writing by the FAA.

S I fupids. The Sponsor must take all steps, including litigation if necessary, to
fecover Federal funtls spent fraudulently, wastefully, orin vialation of Federal antitrust statutes, or
misused in any other manner for any project upon which Federal funds have been expended. For
the purposes of this Grant Agreement, the term “Federal funds® means funds however used or
dispersed by the Sponsor, that were originally paid pursuant to this or any other Federal grant
agreement. The Sponsor must obtaln the approval of the Secretary as to any determination of the
amount of the Federal shara of such funds. The Sponsor must retumn the recovered Federal share,
including furds recovered by settiement, order, or jutdgment, to the Secretary. The Spensor must
fumish to the Secretary, upon request, alt decuments and recards pertaining to the determination
of the amount of the Federal share or to any setlement, Iitigation, negotiation, or other efforts
taken to recover such funds. All setilements or other finat positions of the Sponsor, in court or
othemise. Involving the recovery of such Federal share require advance approval by the Secretary.

Joluty. The United States is not responsible or fiable for

damage to pro or injuryto persons whlch may arise from, or be incident to, campliance with
this GrantAgmemeﬂt.




3-04-0020-021-2021

g. Reguirement for System for Award Management {SAM}): Unless the Sponsor is exempted from
tihis requirement under 2 OFR 25.110, the Sponsor must maintain the currency of its
information in the SAM until the Sponsar submits the fina! finandial report required under this
Grant, of receives the final payrent, whichever is later. This requires that the Sponsor review
and update the information st least snnually.after the initial registration and more frequently if
required by changes In information or another award term. Additional information about
registratfon procedures may be found at the SAM website (currently at hittp://www.som gov).

b. Unigue entity identtfier (UEY) means e 12-character alpha-numeric value used to Kentify a
specific mmmerdnl, nonpmﬁt or gnvemmental entity. A UEl may be obtained from SAM.gov at

12. Electronic Grant Paymentis). Unlessoﬁmrvdsedirected by the FAA, the Sponsor must make each
payment request under this Agreement electronically via the Delphi einvoicing System for,
Department of Transportaﬂon {DOT) Financial Assistance Awerdees.

13. fnformas amendmen Profects. if, during the life of the project, the FAA determines
that the maximum grantobllgaﬁon of the United States exceeds the expected needs of the Sponsor
ty $25,000 or five percent (5%), whichever is greater, the FAA can issue a letter amendment to the
Sponsor unflaterally reducing the meximum obligation.

The FAA can alsn issue 3 letter to the Sponsor increasing the maximum obligation if there is an

overrun In the total actual eligible and allowable project costs to cover the amount of the overrun
provided it will not excead the statutory limitations for grant amendments. The FAA's authority to
increase the maximum obligation does not apply to the “planning” component of Condition No. 1.

The FAA can also issue an informal letter amendment that modifies the grant description to correct
administrative ermors or to delete work ftems if the FAA finds it advaritageous and in the best
interests of the United Stotes.

An informal letter amendment has the sama force and effect as a formal grant amendment.

14. Alr and Wates Quality. The Sponsor {s required to comply with all applicable air and water quslity
standards for all projects in this grant. If the Sponsor fails to comply with this requirement, the FAA
‘may suspend, cancel, or terminate this Grant Agreement.

eporti ayment Bequirements. The Sponsor will comply with all Federal financial
mponmg requ!remerlts and payment requitements, induding submittal of timely and accurate
reports.

16. Buy American. Unless otherwise approved in advance by the FAA, In accordance with 49 US.C. §
50101, the Sponsor will not acquire or permit any contractor or subcontractor to acquire any steel
or manufactured products produced outside the United States to be used for any project for which
funds are provided under this grant. The Sponsor will include a provision Implementing Buy
American in every contract and subcontract awarded under this Grant.

. Mg n Increase. In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 47308(b)(3), as amended, the
cmxlmum ohﬂgaﬂnn of the Unlted States, as steted in Condition No. 1 of this Grant Offer:

a. May not be increased for a planning project;
b. May be increased by not more then 15 percent for development projects if funds ere avallable;

€ May be increased by not more than the greater of the following for a, land praject, i funds are
available:




3-02-0020-021-2021

1. 15 percent; or

2. 25 percent of the total increase in aliowable project costs attributable to acquiring an
interest in the fand.

If the spansor requests an increase, any eligible increase in funding will be subject to the United
States Government share as provided in 43 U.5.C. § 47110, or ether superseding legislation if
applicable, for the fiscal vear appropriation with which the increase is funded. The FAA is nat
responsible for the same Federa) share provided herein for any emount increased over the initial
grantamount. The FAA may adjust the Federal share as applkable through an informal letter of
amendment.

18. Audits for Sponsoss.
PUBLIC SPIONSORS. The Sponsor must provide for a Single Audit or program-specific audit in
aceprdance with 2 CFR Part 200, The Sponsor must submit the audit reporting package to the
Federal Audit Clearinghouse on the Federal Audtt Clearinghouse’s Internet Data Entry Systern at

] ELLY: . Upon request of the FAA, the Sponsor shall provide one copy
of the completed dudit to the FAA.

19, Suspension of Debarment. When entering into a “covered transaction® as defined by 2CFR §
180.200, the Sponsor must:

8. Verify the non-Federal entity is eligible to participate fn this Federal program by:

1. Checking the excluded parties ist system {EPLS) as maintained within the System for
Award Management (SAM) to determine if the non-Federal entity is excluded or
disquslified; or

2. Coflecting a certification statement frorn the non-Federal entity attesting they are not
excluded or disqualified from participating; or

3. Adding a dlause or condition to covered transactions attesting individual or firm ere not
exciuded or disqualified from participating.

b. Require prime contractors to comply with 2 CFR § 180,330 when entering into lower-tier
transactions {e.g. Sub-contracts).

¢ Immediately distlose to the FAA whenever the Sponsor (1) learns they have entered into a

covered transaction with an ineligible entity or (2) suspends or debars 3 contractor, person, or
entity.

8. Inaccordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership en Reducing Text Messaging

While Driving, October 1, 2008, and DOT Order 3302.10, Text Messsging While Driving,
December 30, 2003, the Sponsor Is encouraged to:

1. Adoptand enforce workplace safety poficies to decrease crashaes caused by distracted
drivers Including poficies to ban text messaging while driving when performing any work
for, or on behalf of, the Federal government, including work refating to a grant or subgrant.

2. Conduct workplace safety Initiatives in 8 manner commensurate with the size of the
business, such as:

a. Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to
prohibit text messaging while driving; and



3-04-0020-021-2021

b. Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks
assoclated with texting while driving.

b. The Sponsor must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting while driving In afl
subgrants, contracts, and subtontracts funded with this Grant.
21. Ireffickine in Persops.
a. You as the recipient, your employees, subrecipients under this Grant, and subrecipients”
employees may not —
1. Engage in severe forms of trafficking In persons during the period of time that the Grant
and applicable conditions are in effect;

2. Procture a commertial sex act during the period of time that the Grant and applicable
conditions are in effect; or

3. Use forced labor in the performance of the Grant or any subgrents under this Grant.

b. We as the Federal swarding agency, may unilaterally terminate this Grant, without penaity, if
you or @ subrecipient that is a private entity —
1. Isdetermined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a. of this condition; or
2. Hasan employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to terminate the

Grant to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a. of this condition through conduct that
Is either —

a, Assouigted with performance under this Grent; or

b. imputed to the subrecipient using the standerds and due process for imputing the
conduct of an individual to an arganization that are provided in 2 CFR Part 180, "OM#
Guidelines to Agendies on Government-wide Debarmant and Suspension
{Nonprocurement),” as implemented by our agency at 49 CFR Part 25.

¢ You must inform us immediately of any information you receive from any source alleging a
violation of & prohibition in paragraph a, of this condition.

d. Our right to terminate unilaterally thet is described in paragraph a. of this condition:

I. Implements section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TWPA), as
amended (22 U.5.C. 7104(g)), and

fl. isin addition te all other remedies for noncompliance that are avatiable to us under
this Grant Agreement.

27. AP Funded Work includes in a PFC Applicatinn. Within 90 days of acceptance of this Grant
Agreamant, the Sponsor nu.lstsubmlt tnﬁne FAA an amendment to any approved Passenger Facliity
Charge (PFC) application that contains an approved PFC project also covered under this Grant
Agreement as desaribed In the project application, The airport sponsor mey not make any
expenditure under this Grant Agreement until project work addressed under this Grant Agreement
is removed from an approved PFC application by amendment.

23. Exhibit *A” Property Map. The Exhibit "A” Property Map, is incarporated herein by reference or is
submitted with the project application and made part of this Grant Agreement.

24. Employee Protection from Reprisal.
8. Prohibition of Reprisals —



3-04-0020-021-2021

1. Inaccordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, an employea of a Sponsar, grantee, subgrantee,

5.

contractor, or subcontractor may not be discharged, demoted, or otherwise discriminated
agalnst as @ reprisal for disclosing to a person er body described in sub-paragraph a.2.
below, information that the employee reasonsbly believes is evidence of:

i. Gross mismanagernent of a Federal grant;

il. Grosswaste of Federal funds;

. Anabuse of suthority relating to implementation or use of Federal funds;
iv. A substantialand specific danger to public health or safety; or

v. A violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a Federal grant.

Persons and bodies covered. The persons and bodies to which a disclosure by an employee
is covered are as follows:

i. A member of Congress or a representstive of a committee of Congress;

ii. Aninspector General;

iii. The Government Accountability Office;

Iv. A Federal employee responsibie for contract or grant oversight or management at the
relevant egency;

v. Acourt or grand jury;

vi. Amanagement official or other employee of the Sponsor, contractor, or subcontractor
who has the responsibility to investigate, discover, or address misconduct; or

vil. An autherized official of the Department of Justice or other law enforcement agency.

Submission of Complaint — A person who believes that they have been subjected to 8
reprisal prohibited by paragraph a of this grant term may submt e complaint regarding the
reprisal to the Office of Inspector General (OIG) for the U.S. Department of Transportation.

Time Umitation for Submittal of a Complaint —A complaint may not be brought under this
condition more than three years after the date on which the slleged reprisal took place.

Required Actions of the Inspector General — Actlons, limitstions, and exceptions of the
Inspactor General's office ara established under 41 US.C. § 4712(b).

Assumption of Rights to Civil Remedy — Upon recelpt of an explanation of 3 detision not to
conduct or continue an investigation by the Office of Inspector General, the person
submitting a complaint assumes the right to a civil remedy under 41 U.5.C. § 4712{c).

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

25, Design Grant. This Grant Agreement Is belng issued in order to complete the design of the project.
The Sponsor understands and agrees that within 2 years after the dasign Is completed that the
Sponsor will aceapt, subject to the availabiity of the amount of Federal funding tdentified in the
Afrport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP), & grant to complete the construction of the project in
order to provide a useful and useable unit of work, The Sponsor also understands that if the FAA
has provided Federal funding to complete the design for the project, and the Sponsor has not
completed the design within four (4) years from the execution of this Grant Agreement, the FAA
may suspend or terminate grants related to the design.

prican Execytive Opdegs. The Sponsor agrees to abide by applicable Executive Orders in

effect at the time this Grant Agreement is executed, inciuding Executive Order 14005, Ensuring the
Future Is Made in All of America by All of America’s Workers.



3-04-0020-021-2021

The Sponsor's acceptance of this Offer and ratification and adoption of the Project Application
incorporated herein shall be evidenced by execution of this instrument by the Sponsor, as hereinafter
provided, and this Offer and Acoeptance shall comprise a Grant Agreement, constituting the contractual
obligations and rights of the United States and the Sponsor with respect to the accomplishment of the
Project and compliance with the Grant Assurances, terms, and conditions &s provided herein, Such Grant
Agreement shall become effective upon the Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
elactronic eommunications, to recelve notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or
sign documents electronically. if you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent st any time.

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.!

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

M3 VW

Mike N Williams
‘{Typed Narns]

Manager, Phoenix Airports District Office
{¥oie of FAA Cfficial)

1 Knowingly and willfully providing false Informetion to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C.
Section 1001 {False Statements) and could subject you ta fines, imprisonment, or both.



3-04-0020-021-2021

Part Il - Acceptance

The Sponsor daes hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties,
covenants, and agreements containad in the Project Application and incarporated materials referred to
in the foregoing Offer, and does hereby accept this Offer end by such acoeptance agrees to comply with
all of the Grant Assurances, terms, and conditions in this Offer and in the Project Application,

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disdosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in fieu of using paper documents. You are not required to riceive notices and disclosurres or
sign dotuments electronically. if you prefer not to do 50, you may request to receive paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time.

1 declare under penalty of perjury that the foregolng is true and comrect*

Dated

City of Holbrook
fRomne of Sporsar)

g 2

% knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federsl government s 2 violation of 18 U.S.C.
Section 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both.

Meyd201 |
Click here to sign.

Enteryourjobtile ‘{




3-04-0020-021-2021

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR’S ATTORNEY

1, , acting as Attomey for the Spansor do hereby certify:

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the
laws of the State of _Arizona . Further, I have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the
actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsar’s official representative, who has been duly authorized to
execute this Grant Agreement, which is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws
of the said State, the FAA Reauthorizstion Act of 2018 (Public Law Number 115-254); Title 49 US.C.,,
Chapters 471 and 475; 49 U.5.C. 5 40101, et seq., and A8103; and the Department of Transportation
Appropriations Act, 2021 {Public Law 116-260, Division L), as further amended by the American Rescue
Plan Azt of 2021 {Public Law 117-2). in addition, for grants involving projects to be carried out en
property not owned by the Sponsor, there are no legal impediments that will prevent full performance
by the Sponsor. Further, it is my opinion that the said Grant Agreement constitutes a legal end binding
obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms thereof.

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic
signatures in fieu of using paper documents, You are nat required to receive notices ond disclosures or
sign documents electronicafly. if you prefer not to do so, you may request to recelve paper copies and
withdraw your consent at any time.

I dectare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and comect?
Dated at

{Sgnotuve of Sponsor’s Attomey)



ASSURANCES
ARPORT SPONSORS

A. General.

These assurances shall be eomplied with in the performance of grant agreements for airpart
development, airport planning; and noise compatibility program grants far airport sponsors.

b. These assurances are required to be submitted as part of the project application by sponsors

[

requesting funds under the provisions of Title 49, U.S.C., subtitle Vi, as emended. As used
herein, the term "public agency sponsor® means a public agency with control of & public-use
airport; the term "private sponsor” means a private owner of a public-use alrport; and the term
"sponsor™ includes both public agency sporsors and private sponsors.

Uppn acceptance of this grant offer by the sponsor, these assurances are Incorporated in and
become part of this grant agreement.

B, Dursticn and Applicahility.

1,

2

Alrport development or Notse Computibiity Program Projects Undertaken by a Public Agency
sponsor.

The terms, conditions and assurances of this grant agreement shali remain in full force and
effect throughout the useful Iife of the facilities developed or equipment acquired for an
afrport development or noise compatibility program groject, or throughout the useful life of
the project ftems instelied within a faciitty under a nolse compatibility program project, but In
any event not 1o exceed tiventy (20) years from the date of acceptance of a grant offer of
Federal funds for the project. However, there shall be no limit on the duration of the
assurances regarding Exclusive Rights and Airport Revenue so long as the sirport is used as an
sirport. There shafl be no limit on the dilretion of the terms, conditions, end assurances with
respect to real property acquired with federal funds. Furthermore, the duration of the Civil
Rights assurance shall be specified in the assurances.

Alrport Development or Noise Compatibitity Projects Undertatien by a Private Sponsor.

The preceding paregraph 1 also applies to a private sponsor except that the useful life of
project ttems instafled within a facility or the useful life of the facliities developed or equipment
ecquired under an afrport development or nolse compatibility program project shall be na less
than ten (10} years from the date of acceptance of Federal aid for the project.

Alrpart Planning Undertaken by a Sponsor.

Unless otherwise specified in this grant agreement, only Assurances 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 18, 18, 25, 30,
32, 33, end 34 In Section C apply to planning projects, The terms, conditlons, and assuranoes of
this grant agreament shall remain in full force and effect during the life of the project; there
shall be no fimit on the duration of the assurances regarding Exclusive Rights end Airport
Revenue so long as the airport is used as an airport.

A. Sponsos Cestification.
The sponsor hereby assures and certifies, with respact to this grant that:



1.

General Feders! Requirements

tt will comply with all sppiicable Federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies, guidelines, and
requirements as they relate to the application, acceptance and use of Federal funds for this project
including but not limited to the following:

FEDERAL LEGISIATION

t.
u,

V.

Title 49, U.S.C., subtitle Vii, as amended.

Davis-Bacon Act — 40 U.S.C. 276{a), et seg.}

Federl! Falr Labor Standands Act - 29 U.S.C. 201, gbgen,

Hatch Act -5 US.C. 1501, gLsen?

Uniform Relocetion Assistance and Res) Proparty Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 Title 42 U1.5.C.
4601, elsnn!*

National Historic Preservation Act of 1956 — Section 106 - 16 U.S.C. 470{f).!
Archeolngical and Histaric Preservation Act of 1974 - 16 U.S.C. 465 through 469c.!
Native Americans Grave Repatriation Act - 25 U.S.C. Section 3001, gi seg.

Clean Air Act, P.L. 90-148, as amended.

Coastal Zone Management Act, P.L 93-205, as amerxqed.

Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 — Section 102(a} - 42 L\5.C. 40128

Title 49, U.S.C., Section 303, {formerly known as Section 4{f})

Rehahilitation Act of 1973-29 U.S.C. 784.

Title Vi of the Givil Rights Act of 1964 {42 U.S.C. § 2000d gt seq., 78 stat. 252) {prohibits
discrimination on the basis of rate, color, nations! origin);

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1920, as amended, {42 U.S.C. § 12101 gt seq.), prohiblts
discrimination on the basis of disabiiity}.

Age Discrimination Act of 1975 - 42 U.S.C. 6101, gt seq.

. American indian Religious Freedom Act, P.L 85-341, as amended.

Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 -42 U.S.C 4151, gt seq.?

Power plant and industrial Fuel Use Act of 1978 — Section 403- 2 US.C. 8373.
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act - 40 U.S.C. 327, et seq.'
Copeiand Anti-dickback Act - 18 US.C. 8741

Nationa! Enviranmental Policy Act of 1569 - 42 US.C. 4321, gL seq.!

Wild and Seenlc Rivers Act, P.L. 90-542, as emended.

Single Audit Act of 1584 - 31 U.S.C, 7501, gt seg?

Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 - 41 U.S.C. 702 through 705,



2. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008, as amended {Pub. L. 109-282,
as smended by section 6202 of Pub, L. 110-252).
EXECUTIVE ORDERS
8. Executive Order 11246 ~ Equal Employment Opportunity*
b. Executive Order 11990 —Protection of Wetlands
€. Executive Order 11998 —Flood Plain Management
d. Executive Order 12372 - Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs

e. Executive Order 12693 — Selsmic Sofety of Federal and Federally Assisted New Buliding
Construction®

f. Executive Order 12898 — Environmental Justice

FEDERAL REGULATIONS

&. 2 CFRPart 180 — OMB Guldelines to Agencies on Government-wide Debarment and Suspension
{Non-procurement}.

b. 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Reguiremnents
for Federal Awards. [OMB Circular A-87 Cost Principles Appliceble to Grants snd Contracts with
State and Local Governments, and OMB Circular A-133 - Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations).4 5-¢

€. 2 CFR Part 1200 ~ Non-pracurement Suspension and Debarment,

d. 14 CFR Part 13 — Investigative and Enforcement Procedures

€. 14 CFR Part 16 ~ Rules of Practice For Federally Assisted Alrport Enforcement Proceedings,
f. 14 CFR Part 150 — Airport noise compatibility planning. .

g. 28CFR Part 35 - Discrimination on the Basls of Disability In State and Local Government
Services.,

h. 28 CFR § 50.3 - U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964,

L. 29 CFR Part 1 - Procedures for predetermination of wage rates.!

§ 29 CFR Part 3 —Contractors and subcontractors on public bullding or public work financed in
whole or part by Ibans or grants from the Unfted States.!

k. 29 OFR Part 5 —Labor standards provisions applicable to contracts covering federally financed
and assisted construction {also labor standards provisions applicable to nan-construction
contracts subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act).!

l. 41 CFR Part 60 — Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment
Opportunity, Department of Labor (Federal and federelly assisted contracting requirements).!

m. 49 CFR Part 18 — Uniform administrative requirements for grants and cooperative agreements to
state and local governments.

n. 49 CFR Part 20 — New restrictions on lobbying.



49 CFR Part 21 - Nendistrimination in federally-assisted programs of the Department of
Transporiation - effectuation of Title Vi of the Gvil Rights Act of 1954,

., 49 CFR Part 23 — Participation by Disadvantage Business Enterprise In Airport Concessions.

49 CFR Part 24 — Uniform Relocation Assistance and Rea! Property Acquisition for Federal and
Federally Assisted Programs.* *

43 CFR Part 26 — Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of
Transportation Programs.

49 CFR Part 27 — Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicapin ngrams and Activities
Receiving or Benefiting from Federsl Finansiel Assistance.!

49 CFR Part 28 — Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or
Activities conducted by the Department of Transportation.

49 CFR Part 30— Denial of public works contracts to suppliers of goods and services of countries
that deny procurement market access to U5, contractors,

49 CFR Part 32— Government-wide Requirements for Orug-Free Workplace (Financial
Assistance).
49 CFR Part 37 — Transportation Sesvices for Individuals with Disabilities [ADA).

49 CFR Part 41 — Selsmic safety of Federal and federally assisted or regulated new building
construction.

SPECIFIC ASSURANCES

Specific assurances required to be included in grant agreements by any of the above laws, regulstions or
girculars are incorporated by reference in this grant agreement,

FOOTNOTES TO ASSURANCEC.1.

1
2z
3

4

These laws do not apply to airport planning sponsors,

These laws do not apply to private sponsors.

49 CFR Part 18 and 2 CFR Part 200 contuln requirernents for State and Loca! Governments
receiving Federal assistance. Any requirement levied upon State and Local Governments by this
regulation and drcular shall also be applicable to private sponsors receiving Federal assistance
under Titie 49, United States Code.

On December 26, 2013 at 78 FR 78590, the Office of Mansgement and Budget (OMB] issued the
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards in 2 CFR Part 200. 2 CFR Part 200 replaces and combines the former Uniform
Administretive Requirements for Grants (OMB Circular A-102 and Circular A-110 or 2 CFR Part
215 or Circular) as well as the Cost Principles {Circulars A-21 or 2 CFR part 220; Circular A-87 or 2
CFR part 225; and A-122, 2 CFR part 230). Additionally It replaces Circular A-133 guidance on the
Single Annual Audit. In accordance with 2 CFR section 200.110, the standards set forth in Part
200 which affect administration of Federal awards issued by Federnl agencies become effective
once implemented by Federal agencies or when eny fiture amendment to this Part becomes
final. Federal agencies, Induding the Department of Transportation, must iImplement the
policies and procedures applicable to Federal awards by promulgating a regulation to be
effective by December 26, 2014 unless different provisions are required by statute or approved
by OMB.



2.

3.

3 Cost principles estsblished in 2 CFR part 200 subpart E must be used as guidelines for
determining the eligibility of specific types of expenses.

¢ Audit requirements established in 2 CFR part 200 subpart F are the guidelines for sudits.

Responsibility snd Authority of the Sponsor.

& Public Agency Sponsor:

1t has legal authority to apply for this grant, and to finance and carry out the proposed project;
that a resalution, motion or similar action has been duly adopted or passed as en offidal act of
the applicant's govemning body authorizing the filing of the spplication, including all
understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing and suthsrizing the person
identified as the official representative of the applicant to act In connection with the
application and to provide such additional information as may be required.

b. Private Sponsor:

It has legal authority to apply for this grant end to finance and carry out the proposed project
end comply with all terms, conditions, and assurances of this grant agreement. It shall
designate an official representative and shall in writing direct and authorize that person to file
this application, induding all understandings and assurances contained therein; to act In
connection with this application; end to provide such additionsl Information as maybe
required.

Sponsor Fund Avallabliity.

1t has sufficlent funds avallable for that portion of the praject costs which are not to be pald by the
Unlted States, It has sufficient funds available to assure operation and maintenance of ttems funded
under this grant agreement which it witl own or control.

Good Title,

. It, a public agency or the Federal government, holds good title, satisfactory to the Secretary, to
the landing area of the airport or site thereof, or will give assurance satisfactory to the
Secretary that good tite will be soquired.

b. For noise compatibility program projects to be carried out on the property of the sponsor, it
holds good title sstisfactory to the Secretery to that portion of the property upon which Federal
funds will be expended or will give essurance to the Secretary that good title will be obtained.

Preserving Rights and Powers.

8. It will not take or permit any sction which would operate to deprive it of any of the rights and
powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, and assurances in this grant
sgreement without the written approval of the Secretary, and will act promptly to acquire,
extinguish or modify any outstanding rights or claims of right of others which viould Interfere
with such performance by the sponsor. This shell be done in @ manner acceptable to the
Segretary.

b. Subject to the FAA Act of 2018, Public Law 115-254, Section 163, R will not sell, lease,
encumber, or otherwise transfer or dispose: of any part of its title or other Interests in the
property shown on Exhibit A to this application o, for a noise compatibility program project,
that portion of the property upon which Federal funds have been expended, for tha duration of
the terms, conditions, and assurances In this grant agreement without approval by the
Secretary. If the transferee Is found by the Secretary to be eligible under Title 49, Unfted Stetes



Code, to assume the obligations of this grant agreement and to have the power, autharity, and
financiel resaurces to carry out sll such obligations, the sponsor shall insert in the contract or
document transferring or disposing of the sponsor’s interest, and make binding upon the
transteree all of the terms, conditions, and assurences comtained inthis grant sgreement.

For all nolsa compatibility program projects which are to be carried out by enother unit of local
govamment or are on property owned by a unit of local government ather than the sponsor, it
will enter into an agreement with that government. Except as otherwise specified by the
Secretary, that agreement shall obligate that government to the same terms, conditions, snd
assurances that would be applicable to it if it applied directly to the FAA for a grant to
undertake the noise campatibility program project. That agreement and changes thereto must
be satisfactory to the Secretary. It wili take steps to enforce this agreement against the iocal
government if there ks substantial non-complisnce with the terms of the agreement.

. For nolse compatibifity progrem projects to be carried out on privately owned property, it will

enter into on agreement with the owner of that property which includes provisions specified by
the Secretary. it will take steps to enforce this agreement against the property owner
whenever there s substantial non-compliance with the terms of the agreement.

If the sponsor is a private sponsor, it will take steps satisfactory to the Secretary to ensure that
the airport will continue to function as a public-use airport In accordance with these Bssurances
for the duration of these assurances.

If an amvangement is made for management and operation of the alrport by any agency or
person other than the sponsor or an employee of the sponsor, the sponsor will reserve
sufficient rights and authority to insure that the airport will be operated and maintained in
scoordance Tithe 49, United States Code, the regulations and the terms, conditions and
assurances in this grant agreement and shall insure that such armangement also requires
complience therewith.

Sponsors of commercial service airports will not permit or enter Into any arrengement that
results in permission for the owner or tenant of a praperty used a5 a residence, or zoned for
residential use, to taxi en aircraft between that property and any location on airport. Sponsors
of generel aviation airports entering into any arrangement that results in permission for the
owner of residential real property adjacent te or near the airport must comply with the
requirements of Sec. 136 of Public Law 112-95 and the sponsor assurances.

Consistency with Local Plans.

The project Is reasonably consistent with plans {existing at the time of submission of this
application) of public agencies that are authorized by the Stste in which the project is located to
plan for the development of the area surrounding the airport.

Consideration of Local Interest.

It has given fair consideration to the Interest of communfties in or near where the project may be
located.

Consultation with Users.

In making a decision to undertake any sirport development project under Title 49, United States
Code, it has undertaken reasonable consultations with affected parties using the sirport at which
project is proposed,



9. Public Heasings.

In projects invoiving the location of an alrport, an airport runway, or a major runway extension, it
has afforded the opportunity for public hearings for the purpose of considering the econormic,
sacial, and environmental effects of the alrport or runway location and its consistency with gosls
and objectives of such planning as has been carried out by the community and i shall, when
requested by the Secretary, submit a copy of the transcript of such hearings to the Secretary.
Further, for such projects, it has on Its management board either voting representation from tha
communities where the project Is Iocated or has advised the communities that they have the right
1o petition the Secretary conceming a proposed project.

10. Metropolitan Planning Ovgenization.

In projects involving the location of an airport, an alrport runway, or @ major runway estension at-a
medium or large hub airport, the sponsor has made available to and has provided upon request to
the metropolitan planning orgenization in the area in which the alrport is located, if any, a copy of
the proposed amendment to the airport layout plan to depict the project and a copy of any airport
master plan in which the project is described or depicted.

11. Pavement Preventive Maintenance.

With respect to a project spproved after Janusry 1, 1995, for the replacement or reconstruction of
pavement st the airport, it assures or certifies that it has implemented an effective airport
pavement malritenance-management program and It assures that it will use such program for the
useful life of any pavement constructed, reconstructed or repaired with Federal financial assistance
atthe airport. it will provide such reports on pavement condition and pavement management
programs es the Secretery determines may be useful.

12. Terminal Development Prerequisites.

For prajacts which inclide terminal development at a public use airport, as defined in Title 49, 1t
has, on the date of submittsl of the project grant application, all the safety equipment required for
certification of such alrport under section 44706 of Title 49, Untted States Code, and all the security
equipment required by rule or regulation, and has provided for access to the passenger enplaning
and deplaning area of such airport to passengers enplaning and deplaning from alrcraft other than
air carrier alreraft.

13. Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requiremants.

a. It shall keep sl project accounts and records which fully disclose the amount and disposition by
the recipient of the proceeds of this grant, the total cost of the project in connection with
which this grent is given orused, snd the amount or nature of that portion of the cost of the
project supplied by ather sources, and such other financial records pertinent to the project. The
sccounts and records shall be kept in secordance with an accounting systern that will facilitate
an effective audit in accordance with the Single Audtt Act of 1984,

b. it shall make available to the Secretary and the Comptroller General of the United States, or
any of their duly cuthorized representatives, for the purpose of audit and examinstion, any
baoks, documents, papers, and records of the recipient thst are pertinent to thisgrant. The
Seeretary may require that an appropriate audit be conducted by & recipient. In any case in
which an independent audit is made of the accounts of a sponsor relating to the disposition of
the proceeds of a grant or relating to the project in connection with which this grant was given
or used, It shali file 8 certified copy of such audit with the Comptroiler Genaral of the United



States not later than six (6) months following the dose of the fiscal year for which the audit was
made.

14. Minlmum Wage Rates.

1t shall include, in all contracts in exoess of $2,000 for work on any projects funded under this grant
agreement which imvolve labor, provisions establishing minimum rates of wages, to be
predetermined by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, as emended {40
U.5.C. 2762-776a-5), which contractors shall pay to skilled end unskilled labor, and such minimum
rates shall be stated In the invitation for bids and shall be Included In propossis or bids for the work.

1S. Veteran's Preference.

1t shali inciude In all contracts for work on any project funded under this grant agreement which
involve labor, such provisions s are necessary to insure that, in the employment of labor {except in
executive, administrative, and supervisary positions), preference shall be given to Vietnam era
vaterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan4raq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small
business concerns awned and controlled by disabled veterans as defined in Section 47112 of Title
439, United States Code. However, this preference shall apply only where the individuals are
avaliable and qualified to performn the work to which the employment refates.

16. Conformity to Plans and Specifications.

it witl execute the project subject to plans, specifications, and schedules approved by the Secretary.
Such plans, specifications, and schedules shall be submitted to the Secretary prior to
commencement of site preparation, construction, or ather performence under this grant
agreement, and, upon appraval of the Secretary, shall be incorporated into this grant sgreement.
Any modification to the approved plans, spedfications, and schedules shall also be subject to
approval of the Secretary, and incorporated Into this grant agreemeant.

17. Construction inspection and Approval.
it will provide and maintaln competent technical supervision at the construction site throughout the
project to assure that the work conforms to the plans, specifications, and schedules approved by
the Secretary for the project. it shall subject the construction wark on any project contained In an
approved project application to Inspection and approval by the Secretary and such work shall be in
accordance with regulations and provedures prescribed by the Secretary. Such regulations and
procedures shall raquire such cost and progress neporting by the spansor ar sponsors of such
project as the Secretary shall deem necessary. .

18. Flanning Projects.
In carrying out planning projects:

a.  itwill execute the project in accordance with the approved program narative contalned in the
project application or with the modifications similarly approved.

b. 1twili furnish the Secretary with such perfodic reports as required pertaining to the planning
project and planning work activities.

¢ Itwillinclude in alt published material prepared in connection with the planning project a
notice that the material was prepared under a grant provided by the United States.

d. It will make such material svailable for examination by the public, and agrees that no material
prepared with funds under this project shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any
other country.



e. (twill give the Secretary unrestricted authority to publish, disdose, distribute, and otherwize
use any of the material prepared in connection with this grant.

f. itwill grent the Secretary the right to disepprove the sponsor's employment of specific
consultants and their subcontractors to do all or any part of this project as well as the right to
disapprove the proposed scope and cost of professional services, -

B- Itwill grant the Secretary the right to disepprove the use of the sponsar's employees to do ell
or any part of the project.

h. itunderstands and agrees that the Secretary’s approval of this project grant or the Secretary's
approval of any planning material developed as part of this gramt does not constitute or imply
any assurance or commitment on the part of the Secretary to approve any pending or fiture
application for a Federal alrport grant.

19, Operation end Maintenance.

8. Theairport and all facilities which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users of the airport,
other than facilities owned or controlled by the United States, shall be operated st all times Ina
safe and serviceable condition and in.accordance with the minimum standards as may be
reguired or prescribed by applicable Federal, state and local agencies for maintenance and
operation. it will not cause or permit any activity or action thereon which would interfere with
its use for airport purposes. 1t will sultably operate and maintein the airport and all facilities
thereon or connected thereyith, with due regard to climatic end flood conditions. Any proposal
to temporarily close the airport for non-aeronautical purposes must first be spproved by the
Secretary. in furtherance of this assurance, the sponsor will have In effect arangements for-

1. Operating the airport’s aeronautical facilities whenever required;

2. Promptly marking and lighting hazards resulting from airport condltions, including
temporary conditions; and

3. Promptly notifying airmen of any conditfon affecting eeronautical use of the airport.
Nothing contained heraln shall be construed to require that the airport be operated for
aeronautical use during temporary perfods when snow, floed or other climatic conditions
interfere with such operation and maintenance, Further, nothing herain shell be construed
as requiring the maintenance, repalr, restoration, or replacement of any structure or
facility which is substantially damaged or destroyed due to an act of God or ather
condition or circumstance beyond the controf of the sponsor.

b. 1twill suitebly operate and maintain nolse compatibliity program ftems that it owns or controls
upon which Federal funds have been expended.

20. Hazard Remnovat and Mitigation.
It will take appropriate action te assure that such terminal airspace as is required to protect
Instrument and visual operations to the alrport {including established minimum fight aftitudes) will
be adequately cleared and protected by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or
otherwise mitigating existing alrport hazards and by preventing the establishment or creation of
future girport hazerds,

21, Compatible Land Use.

Ht will take appropriate action, to the extent reasonable, induding the adoption of zoning laws, te
testrict the use of land adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of the airport to activities and



purposes compatible with normal airport operations, including landing and takeoff of aireraft. In
addition, if the project I for nuise compatibility progrem implementation, it will not cause oF permit
any change in fand use, within its jurisdiction, that will reduce s compatibility, with respect to the
sirport, of the noise compatibility program measures upon which Federal funds have been
expended.

22. Economic Nondisorimination.

d.

f.

1t will make the airport available as an alrport for public use on reasonable terms and without
unjust discrimination to all types, kinds and dlasses of aeronautical activities, incluting
commercial aeronautical activities offering services to the public at the airport.

in any agrecment, contract, lease, or other arrangement under which a right or priviiege at the
airport is granted to any person, firm, or corporation to conduct or to engage in any
naeronauticel activity for furnishing services to the public at the alrport, the sponsor will insert
end enforce provisions requiring the contrector to-

1) fumnish said services on & ressonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, basis to el users
thereof, and

2) charge reasonable, and not unjustly disciiminatory, prices for each unit or service,
provided that the contracter may be allowed to make ressonable and nondiscriminatory
discounts, rebates, or other similar types of price reductions to volume purchasers.

Each fised-based operator at the airport shall be subject to the same rates, fees, rentals, and
other charges as are uniformiy applicable to all other fixed-based operators making the same or
similar uses of such airport and utiiizing the same or similar faciiities.

Each alr carrier using such airport shall have the right to service itself or to use any fixed-based
operator that i authorized or permitted by the airport to serve any air carrfer at such airport.

Each air carrier using such airport {whether as a tenant, non-tenant, or subtenent of another alr
carrier tenant) shall be subject to such nondiscriminatory and substantially comparable rules,
regulations, conditions, rates, fees, rentals, and other changes with respect to facilities directly
and substartially relsted to providing sir transportation as are applicable to all such efr carriers
which make similar use of such airport and utilize similar facilities, subject to ressonable
dlassifications such as tenants ar non-tenants and signatory carriers and non-signatory carriers.
Classification or status as tenant or signatory shall not be unreasonably withheld by any airport
provided an air carrier assumes obligations substantially similar to those slready imposed on air
carviers in such dasstfication or status.

1t will not exercise or grantany right or privilege which operates to prevent any person, firm, or
corporstion operating aireraft on the airport from performing any services on its own sircraft
wiith Its own employees fincluding, but not limited to maintensnce, repair, and fueling] that it
may choose to perform.

in the event the sponsar ftself exercises any of the rights and privileges referred to in this
assurance, the services involved will be provided on the same conditions as would apply to the
fumishing of such services by commercial seronsutical service providers authorized by the
sponsor under these provisions.

The sponsor may esteblish such reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, conditions to be
met by all users of the airport as may be necessary for the safe and efficient operation of the
airport.



i

The sponsor may prohibit or limit eny given type, kind or class of aeronautical use of the airport
if such action is necessary for the safe operation of the slrport or necessary to serve the civil
aviption needs of the public.

23, Exclusive Rights.

1t will permit no exclusive right for the use of the airport by any person providing, orintending to
provide, aeronautical services to the public. For purposes of this paragraph, the providing of the
services at an airport by a single fixed-based operator shalf not be construed as an exclusive right if
huoth of the following apply:

b.

it would be unreasanably costly, burdensome, or impractical for more than ene fixed-based
operator to provide such setvices, and

if sllowing more than one fixed-based operator to provide such services would require the
reduction of space leased pursuant to an eidsting agreement between such single fixed-based
operstor and such alrport. It further agrees that it will not, efther directly or indirectly, grent or
permit any person, firm, or corporation, the exciusive right at the sirport to conduct any
aeronautical activitias, Inchuding, but not imited to charter flights, pilot training, aircraft rental
and sightseeing, gerial photography, crop dusting, aerial advertising and surveying, afr carrier
operatipns, aircraft sales and servioes, sale of aviation petrofaum products whether or not
conducted In conjunction with other aeronautical activity, repair and maintenance of sircraft,
sale of 2ircraft parts, and any other activities which because of their direct nefationship to the
operation of aircraft can be regarded as an aeronautical activity, and that it will terminate any
exclusive right to conduct an aeronautical activity now existing at such an airport before the
grant of any assistance under Title 49, United States Code.

24. Fee and Remtal Struchure.

It will maintaln a fee and renta! structure for the fadlities and services at the airport which will
make the airport a5 self-sustaining as possible under the circumstantes existing at the particular
alrport, taking into account such factors as the volume of traffic and economy of collection. No part
of the Federal share of an airport development, airport planning or noise compatibility project for
which a grant is made under Title 49, Unfted States Code, the Airpart end Alrway Improvement Act
of 1982, the Federa) Airport Act or the Alrport and Alnway Development Act of 1970 shall be
included in the rate basis in establishing fees, rates, and charges for users of that airport.

25. Alrport Revenues:

8.

All revenues genersted by the airport and any local texes on aviation fuel established after
December 30, 1987, will be expended by it for the capital or aperating costs of the airport; the
local alrpart system; or ather locsl facilities which are awned or operated by the owner or
operator of the airport and which are directly and substantially related to the actual air
transportation of passengers or praperty; or for noise mitigation purposes on or off the alrport.
The following exceptions apply to this paragraph:

L If covenants or assurances in debt obligstions tssued before September 3, 1982, by the
awner or operator of the sirport, or provistons enacted before September 3, 1982, in
governing statutes contralling the owner or operator's financing, provide for the use of the
revenues from any of the alrport owner or oparator’s facifities, including the sirport, to
support not only the alrport but also the airport owner or operator's ganersl debt
ohligations or other facifities, then this limitation on the use of all revenues generated by
the airport {and, in the case of & public airport, local taxes on aviation fuel) shall not apply.



2. ifthe Secretary approves the sale of a privately owned airport to a public sponsor and
provides funding for any portion of the public sponsor’s acquisition of land, this limitation
on the use of a!l revenues generated by the sale shall not apply to certain proceeds from
the sale. This is conditioned on repsyment to the Secretary by the private owner of an
amount equsl to the remaining unamortized portion {amortized over a 20-year period) of
any airport improverent grant made to the private owner for any purpase other than land
acqulsition on'or sfter Dctober 1, 1996, plus an amount equal to the federal share of the
current fair market value of any land acquired with an airport improvement grant made to
that sirport on or after October 1, 1996.

3. Certain revenue derived from or generated by mineral extraction, production, lease, or
other means at a general evistion sirport (as defined at Section 47102 of title 45 United
States Code), if the FAA determines the alrport sponsor meets the requirements set forth
In Sec. 813 of Public Law 112-95.

b. As part of the annua! eudit required under the Single Audit Act of 1984, the sponsor will direct
that the audit will review, end the resulting audit report will provide an opinion concerning, the
use of airport revenue and takes In paragraph (a), and indicating whether funds paid or
tronsferred to the owner or operator are pald or transferred in @ manner consistent with Title
49, United States Code and any other applicable provision of law, including any regulation
promulgated by the Secretary or Administrator.

¢ Any civil pensities or other sanctions will be Imposed for violation of this assurance In
accordance with the provisions of Section 47107 of Title 49, United States Code.

26. Reports and inspections.
it will:

8. submit to the Secretary such annual or special financis! and operations reports as the Secretary
may reasonably request and make such reports avaliable to the public; make available to the
public at reasonsbie times ond places o report of the airport budget in a format prescribed by
the Secretary;

b. for alrport development projects, make the airport and afl airport records and documents
affecting the airport, Including deeds, leases, operation and use agreements, regulations and
other Instruments, avallable for Inspection by any duly authorized agent of the Secretary upon
reasonable reguest;

¢ for nolse compatibility program projects, make records and documents relating to the project
and continued compliance with the terms, conditions, and assurances of this grant agreement
induding deeds, leases, agreements, regulations, and other Instruments, available for
Inspection by any dufy authorized agent of the Secratary upon reasonable request; and

d. in aformat and time prescribed by the Secretary, provide to the Secretary and make avallable
to the public foBowing each of ts fiscal years, en annual report listing in detail:

1. all amounts paid by the alrport to any other unit of govemment and the purposes for
which each such payment was made; and

2. all services and property provided by the airport to other units of government and the
amount of compensation received for provision of each such service and property.



27. Use by Government Aircraft.

ft will make avaliable all of the fatilities of the airport developed with Federal financial assistance
and all those usable for landing and takeoff of alreraft to the United States for use by Government
aircraft in common with other sircratt st ol times without charge, except, If the use by Government
aircraft is substantial, charge may be made for a reasonable share, propartional to such use, for the
cost of aperating and maintaining the facilities used. Unless otherwise determined by the Secretary,
or ntherwise agreed to by the sponsor and the using agency, substantial use of an airport by
Government aircreft will be considered to exist when operations of such gircraft sre In excess of
those which, in the opinion of the Secretary, would unduly interfere with use of the landing aress
by other authorized aircvaft, or during any calendar month that -

a. Pve (5} ormore Government alreraft are regularly based at the airport or on land adjacent
thereto; or :

b. The total number of movements (counting each landing as 2 movement} of Government
alrcraft Is 300 or more, or the gross accumulative welght of Government aircraft using the
sirgort {the tolal movement of Government sircraft multiplied by gross welghts of such
alrcraft} is in excess of five million pounds,

28. Land for Federal Faciiities.

It will furnish without cost to the Federal Government for use in connection with any sir traffic
control or air navigation ectivities, or weather-reporting and communication activities related to air
traffic control, any ereas of land or water, or estate therein, or rights In bulldings of the sponser as
the Secretary considers necessary or desirable for construction, operation, and maintenance at
Federal expense of space or facilities for such purposes. Such areas or any portion thereof will be
made available ss provided herein within four mionths after recelpt of a written requast from the
Secretary.

29, Airport Layout Plan.

8. Subject to the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, Public Lew 115-254, Section 163, it will keep up
to date st all times an airport layout plan of the airport showing:

1. boundaries of the airport and slf proposed additions thereto, together with the boundaries
of all offsite areas owned or controlled by the sponsor for afrport purposes and proposed
additions thereto;

2. thelocztion and nature of all existing and proposed airport facllities and structures (such

a5 runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal builldings, hangars and roads), including at}
proposed extensions end reductions of existing sirport facilities;

3, thelocation of all existing and proposed non-aviation areas and of all existing
improvements thereon; and

4. all proposed and existing access points used to texi aircraft across the airport’s property
boundary. Such airport layout plans and each emendment, revision, or modification
thereof, shall be subject to the approval of the Secretary which approval shall be
evidenced by the signature of 8 duly authonized representative of the Secretary on the face
of the alrport layout plan. The sponsor will not make or permit any changes or alteratfons
in the airport or any of its facllities which are not In conformity with the alrport layout plan
8s approved by the Secretary and which might, in the opinfon of the Secretary, adversely
affect the safety, utility or efficiency of the airport.



a. Subject to the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, Public Law 115-254, Section 163, ifa
change or afteration in the airport or the facilities Is made which the Secretary
determines adversely affects the safety, ulility, or efficiency of any federally owned,
leased, or funded property on or off the airport and which is not in conformity with
the airport layout plan as approved by the Secretary, the owner or operator will, if
requested, by the Secretary (1) eliminate such adverse effect in a manner approved by
the Secretary; or (2) bear all costs of relocating such property {or replacement thereof)
ta a site acceptable to the Secretary and all costs of restoring such property {or
replacement thereof) to the lewe! of safety, utility, efficiency, and cost of operation
existing before the unapproved change in the airport or its facilities except in the case
of & relocation or replacement of an existing alrport facliity due to a change Inthe
Secretary’s design standards beyond the contro! of the alrport sponsor.

30, civil Rights,

it will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that no person in the United States shall, on
the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination ineny
activity conducted with, or benefiting from, funds recelved from this grant.

8. Usingthe definitions of actiity, faclity and program &s found and defined in §§ 21.23 (b} and
21.23 (e) of 49 CFR § 21, the sponsor will facllitate afl programs, operate eff facilities, or conduct
&l programs in compllance with all non-discrimination requirements imposed by, or pursusnt
to these assurances.

b. Applicability
1. Programs and Activities. if the sponsor has received a granit {or other federal assistance)
for any of the sponsor’s program or activities, these requirements extend to all of the
sponsar's programs and activities.

2. Facilities, Where It recefves a grant or other federat financial assistance to construct,
expand, renovate, remadel, alter or acquire a facility, or part of a facility, the assurance
extends te the entire facility snd faciities operated in connection therewith,

3. Real Property. Where the sponsor recelves a grant or other Federal financlal assistance in
the form of, or for the acquisition of real property or en Interest in real property, the
assurance wilt extend to rights to space on, over, or under such property.

¢. Durstion.

The sponsor agrees that it is obligated to this assurance for the period during which Federal
financial assistance is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance Is
to provide, or is In the form of, personal propesty, or real property, or interest therein, or
structures or improvements thereon, in which case the assurance obligates the sponsor, or any
transferee for the longer of the following periods:

1. So long as the airport is used as an airport, or for another purpose involving the provision
of similar services or benefits; or

2. Solong as the sponsor setains ownership or possession of the property.



d. Required Solicitation Lenguage. It will inchsde the following notification in all salicitations for
bids, Requests For Prapasals for work, or material under this grant agreement and In all
proposals for agreements, including sirport concessions, regardless of funding source:

“The (City of Hofbrook), in accordance with the pravisions of Title Vi of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 US.C. 55 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all
bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this
advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises and airport concession disadvantaged
business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this
invitstion end will not be discriminated against on the grounds of raze, color, or national origin
in consideration for an award.*

e, Reguired Contract Provisions.

1. twill insert the non-discrimination contract clauses requiring compliance with the acts and
regulations relative to non-discrimination in Federally-assistad programs of the DOT, and
incorporating the ects and regulations into the contracts by reference In every contract or

egreement subject to the non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the DOT
acts and regulations.

2. willinclude s list of the pertinent non-discimination authorities in every contrect that is
subject to the non-discrimination acts and regulations.

3. it will Insert non-discrimination contract clauses as & covenant running with the tand, in
any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property,
structures, use, or Improvements thereon or interest therein to a sponser.

4. R will insert non-discrimination pontract clauses prohibiting discrimination on the basis of
race, color, national origin, creed, sex, age, or handicap as a covenant running with the
land, in any future deeds, leases, license, permits, or similar instruments entered into by
the sponsor with ather parties:

3. Forthe subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the
applicable activity, project, or program; and

b. Forthe construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property
acquired or improved under the applicable activity, project, or program,

f. ttwill provide for such methods of administration for tha program as are found by the
Secretary to give reasonahle guarantee that i, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees,
contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest, and other
participants of Federal financial assistsnce under such program will comply with all
requirements impased or pursuant to the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

B it agrees that the United States hes a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any
raatter arising under the acts, the regulations, and this assurance.

31. Disposal of Land.

a. Forland purchased under a grant for airport noise compatibility purposes, induding land
serving as a noise buffer, it will dispose of the land, when the land Is no fonger needed for such
purposes, at fair market value, at the earliest practicable time. That portion of the proceeds of
such disposition which is proportionate to the United States’ share of acquisition of such land
will be, st the discretion of the Secretary, [1) reinvested in another project gt the alrport, or (2)



transferred to another eligible afrport as prescribed by the Secretary. The Secretary shall give
preference to the following, In descending order, {1)reinvestment in an spproved nolise
compatibility project, (2) rélnvestment In an approved praject that ks eligible for grant funding
under Section 47117(e) of title 43 United States Code, {3) reinvestment In an approved elrport
development project that is eligible for grant funding under Sections 47114, 47115, or 47117 of
title 49 United States Code, {4} transferred to an eligible sponsor of another public alrport to be
relnvested in an approved noise compatibility project at that alrport, and (5) paid ta the
Secretary for deposit in the Alrport and Alrway Trust Fund. if land acquired under a grant for
noise compatibility purposes is leased ot fair market velue and consistent with noise buffering
purposes, the lease will not be considered a disposal of the land. Revenues derived from sucha
laase may be used for an approved alrport development project that would otherwise be
eligible for grant funding or any permitted Lise of alrport revenue,

For land purchased under a grant for eirpart development purposes (ather than nolse
compatibility), it wil, when the land is no longer needed for alrport purposes, dispose of such
fand at falr market value or make available to the Secretary an amount equal to the United
States’ proportionate share of the falr market value of the land. That portion of the proceeds of
such disposition which is proportionate to the United States' share of the cost of acquisition of
such tand wili, {1) upon application to the Secretary, be reinvested or transferred to another
eligible airport as preseribed by the Secretary. The Secretary shall give preference to the
following, in desoending order: (1) relnvestment in an approved nolse compatibiiity project, {2)
reinvestment in an approved project that s eligible for grant funding under Section 47117(e) of
title 49 United States Code, (3) reinvestmant in an approved sirport development project that
is eligible for grant funding under Sections 47114, 47115, or 47117 of title 49 United States
Code, {4) transferred to an ligible sponsar of another public sirport to be reinvested in an
approved noise compatibility project &t that alrport, end 5] paid to the Secretary for deposit in
the Airport and Airway Trust Fund.

¢ iand shall be considered to be needed for airport purposes under this assurance i (1} it may be
needed for aeronautical purposes (including runway protection zones) or serye as nolse buffer
1and, and (2} the revenue from interim uses of such land contributes to the financial self-
sufficiency of the airport. Further, land purchased with a grant seceived by an airport operator
or owner before December 31, 1987, will be considered to be needed for alrport purposes if
the Secretary or Federal agency making such grant before December 31, 1987, was notified by
the operator or owner of the uses of such land, did not ohject to such use, and the land
continues to be used for that purpose, such use having commenced no later than December 15,
1989,

d. Disposition of such tand under (a} {b) or {c) will be subject to the retention or reservation of any
intarest or right theretn necessary to ensune that such land will only be used for purposes which
are compatible with noise levels sssocisted with operation of the afrport.

32. Engineering and Design Services.

Engineering and Design Services. if any phase of such project has received Federal funds under
Chapter 471 subchapter 1 of Title 49 U.S.C., it will sward each contract, or sub-contract for program
management, construction management, planning studies, feasibliity studies, architectural services,
preliminary engineering, design, enginearing, surveying, mapping or related services In the same
manmer as a contract for architectural and enginearing services is negotiated under Chapter 11 of
Title 40 U, S. C., or an equivalent qualifications-based requirement preseribed for or by the sponsor
of the alrport.

b.



33. Foreign Macket Restrictions.

1wl not allow funds provided under this grant to be used to fund any project which uses any
product or service of a foreign country during the period in which such foreign country Is listed by
the United States Trade Representative as denying falr and equitable market opportunities for
products and suppliers of the United States in procurement and construction,

1t will carry out any project funded under an Airport Improvement Program Grant in accordance

with policles, standards, and specifications approved by the Secretery induding, but not limited to,
current FAA Advisory Circulars for AlP projects as of March 29, 21121,

35. Relocation and Real Property Acquisition.

a. ttwill be guided In acquiring real property, to the greatest extent practicable under State taw,
by the land acquisition policies in Subpart B of 49 CFR Part 24 and will pay or reimburse
praperty owners for necessary expenses as specified in Subpart 8.

b. itwill provide a relocation assistance program offering the servioes desertbed in Subpart C and
falr and reasonable relocation payments and essistance to displeced persons as required in
Subpart D and E of 43 CFR Part 24.

& Itwillmake avallable within a reasonable period of time prior to displscement, comparable
replacement dwellings to displaced persons in accordance with Subpart E of 49 CFR Part 24.

36. Acoess By Intercity Buses.

The sirport owner or operator will permit, to the maximum extent precticable, intercity buses or
other modes of transportatfon to have access to the airport; however, it has no obligation to fund
special fadilities for intercity buses or for other modes of transportation,

37. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises,

The sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race; color, national origin or sex in the award and
performance of any DOT-assisted contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26, or In the award and
performance of any concession activity contract covered by 49 CFR Part 23, In addition, the sponsor
shall not discriminate on the basis of race, colar, national origin or sex In the administration of its
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise {DBE) and Airport Concessions Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise (ACDBE] programs or the requirements of 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26. The sponsor shall take
all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Parts 23 and 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the
awerd and administration of DOT-assisted contracts, and/or concession contracts. The sponsor's
DBE end ACDBE programs, as required by 49 CFR Parts 26 and 23, and as approved by DOT, are
incorporated by reference in this agreement. implementation of these programs is a fegal obligation
and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification
to the sponsor of its fallure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impase
sanctions as provided for under Parts 26 and 23 end may, In appropriate cases, refer the matter for
enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1936 (31 US.C.
3801).

38. Hanger Construction.

If the airport owner or aperator and a person who owns an aircraft agree that a hangar is to be
constructed ot the airport for the aireraft at the aircraft owner's expense, the airport owner or



operator will grant to the aircraft owner for the hangar a long term lease that is subject to such
terms and conditions on the hangar as the sirport owner or operetor may impose.

39. Competitive Access,

a. [Ifthe airport owner or operator of a medium or large hub airport {as defined in section 47102
of title 49, U.S.C.} has been unable to accommodate one or more requests by an air carrfer for
access to gates or other fadlities at that airport In order to allow the eir carrier to provide
service to the airport or to expand service at the airport, the airport owner or operator shall
transmit a report to the Secretary thet-

1. Describes the requests;
2. Provides an expianation as to why the requests could not be accommodated; snd

3. Provides a time frame within which, if any, the airport will be able to accommodate the
requests.

b. Such report shall be due on either February 1 or August 1 of each year if the alrport has been
unable to accommodate the request(s) in the six month period prior to the applicable due date.



City of Holbrook
Council Action Form

Meeting Date: May 13,2021 Tab: &/
To: Mayor and City Council

From: Jason Foutz

Subject: Planning and Zoning Commission member appointment

Discussion: The Planning and Zoning Commission is composed of five members.
Presently there are only four members with one vacancy. The term of the vacant
position expires October 15, 2022.

The vacancy was advertised in the newspaper. One individual has applied for the
position. Per City Code, to qualify members must be residents. The applicant is a
resident.

Per City Charter, Section 2.05: Qualification of Mayor and Council (d)
Appointments, “The Mayor shall appoint members to various committees, boards and
commissions after due official notice to the public and with the consent of Council.”
The Mayor appoints David Smith to fill the vacant position.

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Recommendation: Consent to the Mayor’s appointment of David Smith to fill the
vacant position on the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Submitted by: @
Jas @nnmg and Zoning Administrator

Approved by: %X/

Ted Soltis, City Manager

Rev 8/19



April 7, 2021

Dear Holbrook Planning & Zoning Board,

1 would like to express my interest in serving on the Holbrook Planning and Zoning
Board. I have spent my career in the construction industry and since I have moved to
Holbrook nearly 8 years ago I have had a strong interest in community development. I
would like to show my commitment to Holbrook by serving on this board. I can be
reached at 480-215-2338.

Sincerely,
DAVID SMITH





